
From: Jonathan Douglass
To: Jonathan Douglass
Subject: RE: Important issue in Agenda Item No. 2
Date: Monday, July 11, 2011 11:37:15 AM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Lichtwardt, Robert W <licht@ku.edu>
Date: Sun, Jul 10, 2011 at 10:06 PM
Subject: Important issue in Agenda Item No. 2
To: "aroncromwell@gmail.com" <aroncromwell@gmail.com>, "schummfoods@gmail.com"
<schummfoods@gmail.com>, "mdever@sunflower.com" <mdever@sunflower.com>,
"hughcarter@sunflower.com" <hughcarter@sunflower.com>

 
To Mayor Aron Cromwell, Vice Mayor Bob Schumm, and Commissioners Michael Dever,
Hugh Carter and Mike Amyx:

We are sending you this email because we believe that this extremely important  issue has
been overlooked.  Attached is our letter.  We also have a letter to the Planning Commission in
the Correspondence section of the Agenda Item No. 2 material.
 
Thank you for considering this issue.
 
Betty Lichtwardt for the Land Use Committee of the LWV-L/DC
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REGARDING ITEM NO. 2, TA3-4-11 ARTICLES 6 AND 7:  STATEMENT TO THE CITY COMMISSION
ON CHANGES TO ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 20-602(h)(2) Height Limit on Projects Adjoining

Certain Residential Zoning Districts, (i) Applicability and (ii) Height Limit Related to Setback

July 10, 2011

We sent a letter and spoke to the Planning Commission (PC) in June on an extremely important issue that we believe
has not been fully recorded in the PC minutes or understood.  It is the fact that this text amendment TA3-4-11 covers
two distinctly different situations regarding the changes to the height and setback regulations. 

The labeled and intended change was understood to be to the Planned Development District. This Planned
Development District, Article 7, is an Overlay District and is governed, with certain exceptions, by the provisions of the
underlying base district.   

However, what is additionally being changed is a provision to Article 6, listed in the title above, which applies to all
base districts themselves, that are adjacent to (adjoining) any RS District, or separated only by a public street or alley
(see Applicability).  In other words, Article 6 applies to any non-RS District next to all single family (RS) zoning
districts, and not just those with PD Overlays (Article 7).  The proposed changes to Article 6, Section 602(h)(2)(i)&(ii)
eliminate the protections currently in place to all single family neighborhoods that govern the required height and
distance between any and every non-single family zoning district and an adjacent single family district.  

The current Code now reads as follows: 
(i) Applicability
The Height limitations set out in this Section shall apply to any Building constructed in a non-RS Zoning District on a
Parcel adjoining, or separated only by an Alley or a Public Street from, a Parcel of land in any RS Zoning District,
except that this limit shall not apply to any Building constructed in the CD Zoning District.

(ii) Height Limit Related to Setback
Any Building or Structure to which this Section is applicable shall be set back from the Yard line adjoining the RS
Zoning District by the minimum Setback established in Section 20-601 when the Building or Structure is
the same or lesser Height than the Building or Structure on the adjoining RS Lot. When the Height of the Building or
Structure exceeds the Height of the Building or Structure on the adjoining RS Lot, the minimum
Setback for the non-RS zoned property shall be equal to the Building’s Height.

The proposed change would read as follows:
(i) Applicability
The Height limitations set out in this Section shall apply to any Building constructed in a non-RS Zoning District on
a Parcel adjoining, or separated only by an Alley or a Public Street from, a Parcel of land in any RS Zoning District,
except that this limit shall not apply to any Building constructed in the CD Zoning District.

(ii) Height Limit Related to Setback
Any Building or Structure to which this Section is applicable shall be set back from the Yard property line adjoining
the RS Zoning District by the minimum Setback established in Section 20-601 when the Building or Structure is the
same or lesser Height than the Building or Structure on the adjoining maximum permitted height of the adjoining
RS Lot. When the Height of the Building or Structure exceeds the Height of the Building or Structure on maximum
permitted height of the adjoining RS Lot, the minimum Setback for the non-RS zoned property shall be equal to the
Building’s Height.” [the bold emphasis was added by LWV]

This is a major change that will affect all neighborhoods because most modern RS homes are much less in height
than 35 feet.  The change would allow a 35 ft. tall apartment, for example, to be only 5 feet from a lot line or ten feet
from the home when 35 feet in height or less, unless it is the same height as the house.

Betty Lichtwardt, Land Use Committee, LWV-L/DC









23 May 2011 

 

Mr. Charles Blaser, Chairman, and Members of the Lawrence-Douglas County Planning Commission: 

I am writing with regard to ITEM NO. 16:  Text Amendment to City of Lawrence Development Code; Multi-
Dwelling Residential Zoning District RM 64 and ITEM NO. 17:  Text Amendment to City of Lawrence 
Development Code; Chapter 20; Planned Development Overlay District.  

I am a bit confused by the staff reviews that 1) indicate that RM 64 zoning would be inappropriate because it is 
considered too high a density and then 2) recommend a change to the Planned Development Overlay District 
allowing for development to an even higher density. 

The staff notes in the review of the Multi-Dwelling Residential Zoning District RM 64 that in 1999 the city had 
a diagnostic review of the development regulations that state that the RM-3 (43 du/ac) and RD (54 du/ac) 
Districts of the code at that time “appear to represent a theoretical maximum rather than realistic or meaningful 
standards” and that it was a conscious decision to reduce the high-density districts when drafting the current 
code.  The Staff Response to the request for RM64 says that Horizon 2020 outlines an overall density range of 
16-21 dwelling units per acre for high-density residential districts and that the proposal is almost 3 times higher 
than the highest density outlined in the plan.   

If the proposal for 64 units per acre is not in conformance with the comprehensive plan, why is a proposal that 
allows for 80 units per acre, almost 4 times higher than the highest density outlined in the plan considered to be 
in conformance with the plan?   

Both approaches can be site specific.  The staff is arguing that better planning will result through use of the 
Planned Development Overlay District.  I would be very interested in a discussion of: 

� Opportunities for flexibility in development that exist for development on small infill lots 
� How a PD Overlay can take into consideration the character of the neighborhood and the surrounding 

property   
� Likely public benefits that might result in a determination from the City Commission that an increase 

in the maximum Net Density beyond that of the Base District is warranted  

The change that has occurred is the consideration of underground parking for development.  Although parking is 
central to this discussion, there is no mention of the fact that twice as much parking would be required for four-
bedroom rather than two-bedroom units while the maximum occupancy for unrelated individuals would be the 
same.  It also should be noted that as density increases, demand for on-street parking for visitors increases 
without any corresponding increase in the number of those spaces available for residents of the area.  Additional 
requirements for visitor parking on site should be considered.  

I would also like to see the density calculations give some consideration to counting studio and one-bedroom 
units differently than two-bedroom units; perhaps counting studio and on-bedroom units as .5 Dwelling Units, 
and two-bedroom units as .75 Dwelling units or as .4 and .6.   If the intention is to seriously encourage a mix of 
sizes, this would give some incentive for that. 

Thank you very much for your good work and your consideration of these proposals.              

 

Marci Francisco, 1101 Ohio, Lawrence, KS  66044    



 

Dear Chairperson Charles Blaser and Planning Commissioners: 

The Lawrence Association of Neighborhoods asks that the Planning Commission not support TA-3-4-
11: Consider Text Amendments to the City of Lawrence Land Development Code, Chapter 20, Article 6 & 7, 
regarding revisions to the district criteria and development standards in the Planned Development Overlay 
District. Initiated by City Commission on 4/5/11. 

Between the Smartcode and the new RS3 and RS5 and the new MU districts the ability to build houses 
closer together on smaller lots has already been addressed. PD’s had been used under the older Development 
Codes in order to build on smaller lots as in my neighborhood, but the addition of the RS3 and RS5 allows for 
those smaller lot developments.  

When would a development need a 0 acres? With this change a small lot development or more units 
could be built on a presently large lot and may not be in character with the surrounding neighborhood. LAN 
would agree that a PD overlay would be a valuable tool, but the requested changes from 5 to 0 acres and new 
density calculations would not be supported by the underlying base zone. The previous codes list 2 acres and if 
staff feels a reduction is needed then the 2 acres should be considered since this was useful, but 0 acres opens 
the door to infill property that is not conducive to its neighbors. However, there is a reason the 5 acre 
requirement was put in place and that reason would have considered what Horizon 2020 states and years of 
work done by the community. 

At the time the new codes were being written there had been a lot of PUD development that had 
negative impact on the neighboring RS districts and the setbacks were created to protect single family homes 
from encroaching PD especially multifamily PUD’s for instance Joseph Street and Canyon Court Apartments. 
The new codes may not have gone far enough in protections of RS districts next to RM districts, but PUD’s are 
covered for this reason. 

Amending the PD Overlay as suggested by Mr. McCullough at the March Planning Commission 
meeting did not imply the density calculations would be part of the text amendment or drastic changes to the 
required area, but to “establish a framework that may be more conducive.”  These two issues are not conducive 
to the surrounding neighbors or neighborhood. 20-701 (a) 5 states “promote attractive and functional residential, 
nonresidential, and mixed use developments that are compatible with the character of the surrounding area.”  
Residential setbacks and density can be changed by the City Commission so the density calculations are not 
needed as stated in 20-701 (i).   

Again, LAN requests not to support the new density calculations. LAN requests that a PD overlay has 
benefits, but the 0 acre request and the parking/density calculations not be added as a text amendment. LAN 
requests that the Planning Commission not support any of the various ways the applicant is asking for higher 
density in an already dense neighborhood with an across the city application. 

Gwendolyn L. Klingenberg 
Lawrence Association of Neighborhoods - President 







Kirk McClure 
707 Tennessee Street 

Lawrence, Kansas 66044-2369 
785.842.8968 

mcclure@ku.edu 
 
 
 
 
May 23, 2011 
 
 
 
Lawrence-Douglas County Planning Commission 
City Hall 
 
 
 
Re:   ITEM NO. 17 TEXT AMENDMENT TO CITY OF LAWRENCE DEVELOPMENT CODE 
 CHAPTER 20; PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT  
 
 
Planning Commission, 
 
The planning staff recommends adoption of a text amendment that permits: 
 

a. Application of planned developments to parcels of any size, and  
b. Adopts a mechanism that counts each studio, one- and two-bedroom unit as only 

one-half unit for density purposes. 
 
 
Definition of a Planned Development 
 
A planned development overlay is a mechanism that permits the design of a parcel in a manner 
that may not meet the normal development requirements,  such as density and open space, on 
all parts of the parcel, but taken as a whole it meets the requirements.  For example, some parts 
of a parcel may be allowed to develop with normally prohibited high densities while the 
remaining parts provide the needed open space bringing the parcel as a whole to a normal 
density. 
 
In order for this to work, the parcel must be of significant scale.  The proposed text amendment 
can be applied to parcels of any size.  This makes the planned development approach simply a 
mechanism for circumventing density and open space requirements rather than meeting them 
through unique designs applied to large parcels. 
 
 



 
Exceptions for Most Rental Units 
 
The text amendment calls for all studio, one-bedroom or two bedroom to be counted as one-
half of a unit for density calculation purposes.  An unusual counting process such as this may 
make sense in a few exceptional circumstances.  It does not make sense if the applicable units 
are the majority of the affected units rather than the exception. 
 
The Census Bureau provides evidence of the breakdown of rental units by bedroom size.  Studio, 
one-bedroom and two-bedroom units comprise over two-thirds of all rental units.   
 
Renter Occupied Units Percent 

of 
Cumulative 

  Total Percent 
    
No bedroom 579 3% 3% 
1 bedroom 4,467 24% 28% 
2 bedrooms 7,613 41% 69% 
3 bedrooms 4,304 23% 92% 
4 bedrooms 966 5% 98% 
5 or more bedrooms 416 2% 100% 
TOTAL 18,345   
    
Source: U.S. Census Bureau   
              2005-2009 American Community Survey 
              Table B25042 Tenure by Bedrooms  
 
Such a counting mechanism that views over two-thirds of the rental units developed as only 
one-half of the count of units renders density calculations meaningless. 
 
Only the developers want greater density in the already densely developed multi-family 
neighborhoods.  Neighborhood residents do not want greater density.  The planning commission 
should be very suspicious of mechanisms that seek to circumvent reasonable limitations on 
density. 
 
 
Citywide Changes to Solve Individual Problems 
 
This proposal is being pursued in order to permit the redevelopment of the 1000 block of 
Indiana Street.  It is entirely possible that a redevelopment plan for this site should be adopted 
that rezones the property and permits increased density.  However, the Planning Commission 
should not adopt text amendments that will apply citywide in order to facilitate the 
redevelopment of an individual, and possibly unique, parcel of land. 
 
 
 



Recommendation 
 
The notion of increased density may be a good idea for the 1000 block of Indiana.  That location 
is well-suited to multi-family housing, and perhaps, if the development is well designed, it may 
be an acceptable idea to permit greater density on this site than might be permitted under 
normal zoning constraints. 
 
It is not a good idea to stretch the notion of planned development overlay districts to apply 
citywide, to apply to parcels of small size, and to artificially permit increased density where it is 
not desirable.  
 
The Planning Commission should vote against this text amendment. 
 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
 
Kirk McClure 
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